
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 9 NOVEMBER 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: VIRTUAL TEAMS MEETING 

 
Members: Professor Geoffrey Crossick (Chairman) 

Randall Anderson (Deputy Chairman) 
Costigan 
Herington 
Dr Paula Haynes 
Andrew Mayer 
 

 
Enquiries: julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
 

Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: 
 

 https://youtu.be/shH3_rAiTwA 
 
 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical 
location. A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the 
end of the public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting 
recordings do not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are 
available on the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the 
discretion of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 

 

 

 

 
 John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/shH3_rAiTwA


2 
 

AGENDA 
Part 1 - Public Agenda 

 
1. APOLOGIES 
 

 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To approve the public minutes of the following meetings: 

 
 For Decision 
  

 
 a) MInutes of the Meeting held on 15th July 2021  (Pages 5 - 12) 

 

 b) Minutes of the Special Meeting held on 7th September 2021  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

4. WORK PLAN 
 The Committee is asked to note the workplan. 

 
 For Discussion 
 (Pages 17 - 20) 

 
Internal Audit 

 
5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 
 Report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 21 - 40) 

 
6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 

 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 



3 
 

 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
  
 

  
 

Part 2 - Non Public Agenda 
 
9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To approve the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 15th July 2021 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 41 - 44) 

 
10. UPDATE ON THE TARGET OPERATING MODEL (TOM) AND LISVANE 

GOVERNANCE REVIEW 
 Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama to be heard. 

 
 For Information 
  

 
Governance 

 
11. OVERVIEW OF SCHOOL STATUTORY RETURNS - 2020/21 CYCLE 
 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 45 - 50) 

 
12. ONGOING CONDITIONS OF REGISTRATION WITH THE OFFICE FOR STUDENTS 

(OFS) 
 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 51 - 66) 

 
Risk Management 

 
13. GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA RISK REGISTER 
 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 67 - 158) 

 
14. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
 



4 
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 
 
 

Confidential - Deep Dive Reports 
 
16. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 Report of the Principal. 

 
 For Information 
  

 
17. EQUALITY DIVERSION AND INCLUSION (EDI) 
 Report of the Principal. 

 
 For Information 
  

 
18. FUTURE DEEP DIVES FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE 
 Principal and Chairman to be heard. 

 
 For Discussion 
  

 



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA 

 
Thursday, 15 July 2021  

 
Minutes of the meeting  streamed to You Tube at 9.30 

https://youtu.be/-uoPqex12XY 
 NB. This recording will be available for 1 year from the date of the meeting 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Professor Geoffrey Crossick (Chair) 
Christopher Costigan 
 

Michael Herington 
Andrew Mayer 
 

In Attendance 
Vivienne Littlechild (Deputy Chair of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School 
of Music and Drama) 
 
Officers: 
Lynne Williams - Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama 

Jonathan Vaughan - Vice Principal, Guildhall School of Music & Drama 

Matthew Lock 
 
Paul Dudley 

- Head of Audit and Risk Management, Chamberlain’s 
Department 

- Corporate Risk Advisor, Chamberlain’s Department 
Cirla Peall 
Graeme Hood 
Jonathan Poyner 

- Chamberlain's Department 
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama/Barbican Centre 
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama/Barbican Centre 

Katharine Lewis 
Alison Mears 

- Dean and Secretary, Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Director of Guildhall Young Artists and Safeguarding, 

Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Randall Anderson (Deputy Chair) and Paula 
Haynes 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES  
The public minutes of the meeting held on Monday 26th April 2021 were 
approved.  
 
Matters arising 

The Chair advised that the School’s Governance and Effectiveness Committee 

had met the previous week and agreed to receive by the end of July a draft 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3a

https://youtu.be/-uoPqex12XY


compliance report in respect of the CUC Code of Practice.  The Chair also 

asked to receive the Office for Students (OfS) Conditions of Registration at the 

next meeting, given that the Committee has a couple of new Members.  

 
4. DRAFT WORKPLAN FOR THE COMMITTEE  

The Chair explained that this was effectively a skeleton, draft document and 
invited comments from Members, which were provided as follows: 
 
Financial Statements 
It was agreed that this should be specific in terms of ‘making recommendations 
to the Board’  as it would provide clarity as to why the Committee needs to 
receive them.   
 
Risk Management 
1. Members had asked for Safeguarding to be included on this agenda as it is 

a vulnerable and sensitive area.   The Chairman suggested that, for future 
‘deep dive’ reports, the Committee should, wherever appropriate, receive 
recent documentation and a short covering report, so as not to generate 
additional work for officers.  The Chairman also suggested that possible 
subjects for future deep dives be considered later on the agenda, under the 
Risk Register.    The City Corporation’s Head of Internal Audit offered to 
share the City’s Corporate template for deep dive reports.   

 
2. There was some discussion in respect of resilience against a number of 

risks materialising at the same time, as had been the case with the 
pandemic over the past 18 months.  It was noted that, whilst this might be 
covered to some extent by the Business Continuity Plan, it could be more 
specific; i.e. – all of the financial risks materialising over a relatively short 
timescale.   The officer explained that the Medium Term Financial Plan 
aims to build financial sustainability in terms of efficiency savings and 
identifying new income streams, which will diversify and reduce reliance on 
existing ones and build up reserves.  The Chair suggested that, as there 
was likely to be more clarity on some of the financial issues by the next 
meeting, it might warrant a more in-depth report at the November 
Committee.   

 
3. The Vice Principal reminded Members how the past year had been a 

‘perfect storm’ in terms of the pandemic, Brexit and student recruitment and 
the loss of reserves etc.  Additionally, the ‘Black Lives Matter’ and the ‘Me 
too’ movements had a significant cultural impact.  The School is a small 
institution, and there are often just one or two individuals holding the 
necessary pools of expertise.  Given the additional work involved in online 
auditions, and the mounting administrative pressures from the various 
regulatory bodies, this might be an area worthy of further scrutiny.   

 
4. The Principal explained that consultation on the Target Operating Model 

was due to start over the summer.  Members noted that some of the 
services shared with the Barbican Art Centre might no longer be relevant, 
as both organisations have complex structures and there have been 

Page 6



considerable changes in Higher Education.  The Chair suggested that the 
Principal and Vice Principal consider the right forum for addressing these 
issues, giving due regard to the TOM’s progression on enabling services, 
and noting that this might present a significant risk if TOM does not present 
a resolution.  The Chair asked for this to be recorded in the minutes, and 
for the TOM/Lisvane progress to be a standing item under ‘matters arising’ 
at each meeting.  

 
5. In respect of a potential deep dive on the pandemic plan, Members noted 

that the OfS and Government had issued new guidance, and there would 
be an update to  the Board at the start of the new Academic Year. The 
Chair asked if an update could be circulated to Governors over the 
summer, in good time for the September Board.  Members noted that the 
Gold Group would be continuing to meet through the Summer, and the 
School would be permitted to lead on their own arrangements through the 
Autumn.  Members noted that, whilst the Government says that it is 
avoiding additional regulations on the university sector, there will be 
pressure points created by populations moving around once the term starts 
in September.   The Chairman suggested revisiting the Covid risks on the 
Risk Register later on the agenda.   

 
Internal Audit 
1. In response to the Chair’s question as to whether the meetings for specific 

reports could be included on the workplan, the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management (ARM) advised that this is likely to change very frequently, 
and it was therefore agreed not to do so.  The Committee decided that they 
would like to continue receiving an Internal Audit Update report at every 
meeting. The Head of ARM further advised that the Annual Report of this 
Committee needs to be presented to the September meeting, as it is part of 
the annual suite of documents submitted to the Office for Students.  
Members noted that, following the change in submission deadlines to the 
OfS, this report would be presented to the Committee earlier in future 
years.   

 
2. The Chair and Members agreed that, whilst  internal audit  and its actions 

and recommendations are core concerns of this Committee, there could 
reasonably be some constraints on the level of detail it received.    The 
Head of ARM advised that this Committee’s existence is a requirement of 
OfS funding and, whilst audit committees tend to receive a large number of 
information reports, this helps them to gain assurance and are able to seek 
more in-depth scrutiny where necessary.   

 
Governance 
Members noted that the School’s Governance and Effectiveness Committee is 
concerned with overseeing the School’s Governance on behalf of the Board, 
and that this heading in the workplan presumably referred only to the Audit & 
Risk Management Committee’s own governance processes and procedures, 
and not those of the School itself.   
 
 

Page 7



 
External Inspections 
The Chair suggested that this heading be changed to ‘External Evaluations and 
Assessments’ which is a more relevant title and would include, for example, the 
Teaching Excellence Framework,  Research Excellence Framework etc.    
 
The Chair also suggested a new row in respect of ‘External Regulations and 
Reports’ which would cover the OfS, CUC and possibly UKRI etc.   Whilst data 
returns fall within the Board’s remit, this Committee needs to ensure that they 
are appropriate and quality assured. The Dean and Secretary suggested an 
Annual update, setting out the returns submitted over the year and their dates.   
The Committee agreed this approach and asked for an indicative timetable of 
returns to be presented to the Board at its next main meeting.  A Member 
agreed to share a reporting template with the Dean and Secretary. 
 
The Chair thanked Members for their helpful contributions to the workplan   
 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
The Chair commended the smooth progress of the audits and the character of 
the recommendations.  In response to a question about overdue targets without 
explanatory comments, Members noted that the audits concerned had very 
recent targets dates and would only present a problem if not completed by the 
time of the next report. The officers gave assurance in terms of good progress 
arising from the recommendations and confirmed that the minor outstanding 
areas would be resolved shortly.   The officers also commended the assistance 
and professionalism of the Internal Audit Team.  The Dean and Secretary 
advised that the Student Affairs Review target date had been revised due to the 
pandemic and  would now be presented to Internal Audit by 31st October 2021.   
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

6. CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND 
STRATEGY 2021  
1. The Committee received a report of the Corporate Risk Advisor in respect 

of the City Corporation’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy for 2021.  
Members noted that the report had been circulated to the Chairs of all City 
Corporation Grand Committees, including the Chair of the Board of 
Governors of the School.  The Chair (of the ARM) had raised a number of 
questions and the responses were provided in the covering report.  In 
response to a question about how the Committee might wish to consider 
reviewing its role, the following suggestions were offered:  

    
2. There was a general agreement that some of the bullet points set out 

below would benefit from an annual review, particularly those highlighted* 
and the Chair suggested revisiting them at the  November Meeting. 

 
a. How do senior management support and promote risk management? 
b. How well are officers equipped and supported to manage risk well? 
c. How is City Corporation’s Risk Policy and Strategy being embedded? 
d. Are there effective arrangements for managing risks with partners*? 

Page 8



e. How do departmental processes promote effective risk management? 
b) How are risk identified, assessed, handled, and reported at officer and 

Committee levels? 
c) How does risk management contributes to achieving successful School 

outcomes*? 
 
3. The Corporate Risk Adviser endorsed the earlier discussion about deep 

dives as they are  a useful tool  for Audit Committees and are also 
undertaken by the City Corporation’s Audit and Risk Management 
Committee. Members noted that general guidance on Risk Registers 
states that they should be as concise as possible. Furthermore, in having 
an Audit and Risk Committee, the School is operating above the standard 
of most Service Committees within the City of London Corporation.    

 
4. The Principal stressed how the fundamental differences between the 

School and the City Corporation makes it difficult to align risk appetites. 
The Chair endorsed this, for example as the School would be unlikely to 
survive if creativity and performance were treated with a low risk appetite. 
The officers suggested that the School might want to look beyond the ‘red, 
amber and green’ ratings in order to gain their own perspective.  

 
5. An officer commended the strong working relationship with the City in 

terms of the City’s Procurement, City Surveyors and Internal Audit teams, 
and how their  collective support helps mitigate risks.   The Chairman 
stressed the importance of the TOM and Lisvane outcomes in recognising 
the relationship with the City, and the financial support it offers, whilst 
giving the School greater independence in terms of management and 
governance. 

 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.  
 

7. SAFEGUARDING ASSURANCE  
1. The Committee received a report of the Principal, in response to a request 

to update the Committee about safeguarding assurance at the School, 
noting that this would always present a high risk, however well it was being 
managed.  

 
2. The Director of Guildhall Young Artists and Safeguarding advised that this 

is a standing item on Senior Management Team agendas, the Director 
meets regularly with the Principal and has weekly 1-1s with the Head of 
Safeguarding.  Members noted that all returns to the OfS have had positive 
evaluations, as was a recent self-evaluation survey of service users.  The 
Chair asked Members to confine any detailed discussions to the non-public 
report at agenda item 12.  

 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.  
 

8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  

Page 9



 
9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  

There were no urgent items.  
 
 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
as follows:- 
 

Item Paragraph 

11 3 

12 2 

13 2,3 

 
11. NON PUBLIC MINUTES  

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 26 April 2021 were approved.  
 

12. SAFEGUARDING ASSURANCE (NON-PUBLIC APPENDIX)  
The Committee considered a non-public appendix in respect of agenda item 7. 
 

13. RISK REGISTER  
The Committee received a report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and 
Drama.  
 

14. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no urgent items.  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 11.45 am 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Julie Mayer  
tel. no.: 020 7332 1410 

Page 10



julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA 

 
Tuesday, 7 September 2021 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board 
of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama held virtually on Tuesday, 7 

September 2021 at 2.30 pm 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Professor Geoffrey Crossick (Chairman) 
Randall Anderson (Deputy Chairman) 
Andrew Mayer 
 

Dr Paula Haynes 
Christopher Costigan 
Michael Herington 
 

 
Officers: 
Jonathan Vaughan 
Graeme Hood 
Matthew Lock  

- Guildhall School of Music & Drama 
- Guildhall School of Music & Drama 
- Chamberlain’s Department 

Katharine Lewis - Guildhall School of Music and Drama 

John Cater - Town Clerk’s Department 

Jonathon Poyner - Guildhall School of Music and Drama and 
Barbican Centre 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
There were no apologies. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. ANNUAL FINANCIAL RETURN TO THE OFFICE FOR STUDENTS  
The Committee considered a Report of the Principal concerning the Annual 
Financial Return to the Office for Students.  
 
RESOLVED – that the Committee recommends the return for approval by the 
Governing Board. 
 
3a) Audited Financial Statements for the eight months to 31 March 2021  
 
The Committee considered a Report of the Principal concerning the Audited 
Financial Statements for the eight months to 31 March 2021. 
 
Officers confirmed that, given the departure of Lynne Williams, the finalised 
statements would be submitted under the name of the newly-appointed Interim 
Principal, Jonathan Vaughan. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3b



The Chairman asked that reference be made to the AHRC as the funder of the 
school’s ‘Music for Social Impact: practitioners’ contexts, work, and belief’ 
research project as that is the normal expectation of a research council.  
 
In response to a query around the nature of the “delays to national decision 
making” referenced on page 13, officers confirmed that this referred to areas 
such as undergraduate fee levels and a return to in-person teaching at the 
School. 
 
The Chairman proposed that the wording under the Board of Governor’s sub-
heading on page 14 be amended from ‘….. and who bring expertise to the 
Board from the arts and education sectors’ to ‘… the cultural, education and 
other sectors’. 
 
Referring to the first main paragraph on page 16, the Chairman proposed that 
the wording should insert “taught” before degree, i.e. ‘Following granting of 
taught degree-awarding powers in 2014…’ this was to in order to clarify the 
School’s degree courses provision (the School does not have its own research 
degree awarding powers).    
 
The independent auditor confirmed that pages 19 – 22 still needed to be 
finalised as they currently included references to the previous financial year. 
Whilst some checking was still to be undertaken, no material changes were 
expected.   
 
Officers confirmed that, as the employer of staff at the School, pensions 
liabilities sat with the City of London Corporation and no reference needed to 
be made in the accounts.  
 
In response to a query, officers confirmed that both an update for the Access 
and Participation plan and the associated spend would continue to be reported 
to the Board and the Office for Students (OfS) on an academic year basis in 
keeping with the Schools’s Access Agreement. 
 
RESOLVED – that the Committee endorsed the Statements to the Board.  
 
    
3b) Management Letter from the External Auditors regarding the Financial 
Statements  
 
The Committee considered a Report concerning the Management Letter from 
the External Auditors regarding the Financial Statements. 
 
The auditor confirmed that whilst the School is listed as having charitable status 
on page 8, this is incorrect, and the wording would be amended. 
 
RESOLVED – that the Committee endorsed the Management Letter to the 
Board.   
 
 

Page 14



 
 
3c) The Annual Financial Return setting out the School's results for the 
last two years and Forecasts for the following five years  
 
The Committee considered a Report concerning the annual financial return.  
 
Officers clarified that the template was, unfortunately, one-size-fits-all, which all 
universities in England were required to complete. Several areas did not apply 
to the School which led to error and warning messages being recorded on the 
template. Members should not be alarmed as these would be resolved as the 
verification process was completed. 
 
Officers confirmed that the responses in the five-year forecast were broadly 
consistent with the forecast approved by the Board in November 2020. 
 
RESOLVED – that the Committee recommended the annual financial return for 
the Board’s approval.  
 
 
3d) A commentary covering the main year-on-year variances contained 
within the Annual Financial Return  
 
The Committee considered a Report concerning the commentary on variances.  
 
Noting that the narrative in the commentary was fuller in last year’s return, 
Members asked officers to expand on the narrative in the commentary for this 
year’s iteration. 
 
The Chairman pointed out that the details for the grant listed on page 85 should 
be amended as this was not a Research England grant. 
 
The Chairman queried the wording ‘…. while maintaining the highest possible 
academic 
Standards’ and suggested that this should be amended to refer to the quality of 
provision (rather than standards whose meaning was different) and also that 
thought be given to a less unrealistic formulation than ‘highest possible’.  
 
The Chairman queried the wording ‘….sweating our assets’, he suggested that 
‘making optimal use of our assets’ would be more appropriate.  
 
The Chairman was concerned that the last sentence in comment 3 on page 87 
(of the agenda pack), namely; ‘we are also working closely with colleagues in 
the City of London to ensure that they are aware of the risks, including the 
potential need to reduce our footprint in the event that we cannot generate 
sufficient revenues going forwards’. was too negative and, given the 
expectations for a specialist institution in receipt of ISTA funding, did not give 
enough emphasis to the School’s primary aim of protecting quality and 
numbers. 
 

Page 15



RESOLVED – that subject to the above changes being made prior to 
submission the Committee recommended the commentary to the Board. 
 
 
 
 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION  
The Committee received a Report of the Chamberlain concerning the Internal 
Audit.  
 
RESOLVED – that the Committee noted the Report.  
 
 

5. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
The Committee considered a Report concerning the Annual Report of the 
Board of Governors and the Principal for the year ended 31 March 2021  
 
Officers confirmed that the moderate assurance rating for internationalism was 
incorrect, as per the Schedule of Internal Audit Projects informing the Guildhall 
School Annual Audit Opinion 2020-21, appendix 1, page 95, the rating should 
be amended to substantial.  
 
RESOLVED – that the Committee approves the Report for submission to the 
Board.  

 
 
The meeting ended at 3.50 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: John Cater 

 
 

Page 16



Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School - Work Programme: October 2021 update  
 

 

CATEGORIES  1st February 2022 

 

6th June 2022 

 

8th September 2022 4th November 2022 

Matters arising: 
 
 
 

TOM/LISVANE PROGRESS TOM/LISVANE 
PROGRESS 

  

Accounts: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Financial Statements  

Risk 
Management: 
 
 
 

 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Internal Audit 
 
 
 

 
Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 

 
Internal Audit Year 
End/Annual Report for 
2021/22 

 

Internal Audit Update Internal Audit Update 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School - Work Programme: October 2021 update  
 

Governance: 
 
 

 
Committee’s Terms of Reference 
(ahead of approval by the Board 
in May) 
 
City Corporation Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy 
 
To consider whether any of the items  
below might benefit from an annual 
review, particularly those highlighted* 

a. How do senior management support 
and promote risk management? 

b. How well are officers equipped and 
supported to manage risk well? 

c. How is City Corporation’s Risk Policy 
and Strategy being embedded? 

d. Are there effective arrangements for 
managing risks with partners*? 

e. How do departmental processes 
promote effective risk management? 

f. How are risks identified, assessed, 
handled and report at Officer and 
Committee levels? 

g. How does risk management 
contributes to achieving successful 
School outcomes*? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

P
age 18



Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School - Work Programme: October 2021 update  
 

External 
Evaluations and 
Assessments: 
 
 

    

 
External 
Regulations and 
Reports 
 
 

    

 

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 20



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 
School of Music & Drama 

09/11/2021 
  

Subject: Internal Audit Update Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Head of Audit & Risk Management For Information 

Report author: Cirla Peall, Audit Manager 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report has been prepared to provide Members with an update in respect of 
Internal Audit activity related to the Guildhall School since the July 2021 meeting of 
this Committee. Audit Plan delivery for 2021-22 is in progress and formal Internal 
Audit follow-up of recommendations is ongoing to enable the provision of a revised 
assurance opinion for each previously completed audit.   
 
As at mid-October 2021 there are no live red priority recommendations and twenty 
five live amber priority recommendations which arose from five audits. 
 
 Recommendation(s)  

Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the report 

• Consider the appropriateness of delays in demonstration of high priority 
recommendations implementation 

 

Main Report 

Background 
 
1. This Committee receives regular updates in respect of delivery of Internal Audit 

work and the implementation of Audit recommendations.  The last Update Report 
was presented to the July 2021 meeting of this Committee; the September 2021 
meeting focused on the 2020-21 Annual Report. 
 

2. A summary of outcomes is reported for finalised audit work i.e. where full 
management responses have been received and agreed, and there is a reminder 
of the scope of audit for any audits where draft reports have been issued and 
management responses are awaited.  

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



3. In terms of high priority recommendations, this report provides Members with the 
latest implementation position, based on formal audit follow-up undertaken and, 
where appropriate, interim updates from Guildhall School management. 

 
Current Position 

Delivery of Internal Audit Work 
 

4. The status of 2021-22 Plan delivery is outlined in Appendix 1.  Following the July 
2021 meeting of this Committee which resulted in the audit of Safeguarding being 
deferred to 2022-23, Internal Audit met with the Interim Principal to agree 
alternative coverage.  An audit of internal governance will be undertaken, 
focusing on compliance with sector guidance; Internal Audit will liaise with School 
management to agree the detailed scope and approach. 
 

5. Audit Plan delivery progress since the last update can be summarised as: 
 

• The final report has been issued in respect of overall compliance with the 
Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing; 
Internal Audit had previously only reported on the mandatory elements. 

• One audit (Data Quality) is at planning stage and will be initiated this quarter. 
The draft terms of reference have been circulated for management comment. 

• One formal follow-up has been completed and resulted in movement from 
moderate to substantial assurance. 

• Two formal follow-up exercises are in progress. 

• Internal Audit is liaising with Guildhall School management on the remainder 
of the Audit Plan to facilitate completion within the current year. 

 
Universities UK (UUK) Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 
 
6. Internal Audit’s compliance review in respect of the mandatory elements of the 

Code was reported to the July 2021 meeting of this Committee. Since that time, 
Internal Audit work on the non-mandatory elements has been completed and a 
report encompassing all elements has been finalised. Two additional green 
priority recommendations have been made and there has been no change to the 
overall assurance opinion of ‘moderate’. A copy of the updated executive 
summary is provided at Appendix 2 and contains full recommendation details.  

 

Recommendations Red Amber Green Total 

Number Made: 0 7 5 12 

 
7. All twelve recommendations were accepted by management with target 

implementation dates ranging between June and September 2021 for the 
mandatory elements, and September 2021 and March 2022 for the non-
mandatory elements.  It is understood that UUK are independently monitoring 
completion of mandatory actions against the agreed timescales in the final audit 
report. An Internal Audit follow-up exercise was initiated in October 2021, all 
mandatory target timescales having been reached, and at the time of writing, 
status information and implementation evidence are awaited.   
 

Page 22



Data Quality 
 

8. The draft terms of reference have been circulated for management comment in 
respect of the 2021-22 Data Quality audit. The Head of Audit Annual Opinion 
should incorporate a statement in respect of data quality and Internal Audit seeks 
to obtain assurance in this area by undertaking independent verification / 
validation of data submissions as part of a rolling programme of checks.  
Following discussion with School management, it has been agreed that the focus 
of the 2021-22 check will be financial returns and it is anticipated that the audit 
will commence in November 2021. 

 
Guildhall Young Artists: First Follow Up  
 

9. A formal follow-up exercise was carried out in respect of this 2020-21 Audit.  
Internal Audit confirmed implementation of six recommendations and partial 
implementation of four recommendations, resulting in a substantial assurance 
rating. 

 

Audit: Guildhall Young Artists 

Final Report 
Date: 

April 2021 Issues 
Raised: 

10 Original 
Assurance Rating: 

Moderate 

Follow-up 
Review 

July 2021  Issues 
Resolved: 

6 Revised 
Assurance Rating: 

Substantial 

 

10. Revised target timescales have been received for resolution of the outstanding 
issues between the end of December 2021 and the beginning of April 2022.  
Internal Audit will undertake a second follow-up exercise in April 2022, as agreed 
with Management. 

 

GSMD & Barbican - Facilities Management & Maintenance: First Follow-Up  
 

11. The follow-up in respect of the thirteen recommendations from this 2020-21 audit 
is in progress.  A management update and associated information / 
documentation has been provided to Internal Audit in respect of the status of 
implementation and at the time of writing, evaluation is in progress. Management 
have indicated their view that the position comprises recommendations 
implemented, recommendations progressed but not fully implemented and 
recommendations not implemented. The follow-up outcome, including updated 
assurance opinion, will be reported to the next meeting of this Committee. 

 

12. Internal Audit will continue to liaise with School Management to agree the timing 
of remaining Plan delivery. 

  
Live High Priority Recommendations 
 
13. Internal Audit follow-up is undertaken promptly once target timescales have been 

reached and a revised assurance opinion is provided on the basis of the follow-
up outcome. As at the end of October 2021, there are no live red priority 
recommendations and twenty five live amber priority recommendations.  A 
summary of the recommendations is attached at Appendix 3 and reflects that: 

• The recommendations span five audits. 

Page 23



• The original target dates have passed for all twenty five recommendations. 
 
14. It should be noted that thirteen recommendations (GSMD & Barbican Facilities 

Management and Maintenance) were the subject of recent follow-up enquiries 
and status information / evidence was received during the writing of this report.  
Management have indicated that there has been slippage in implementation of 
some recommendations and revised target timescales have been proposed for 
demonstration of full implementation. Internal Audit evaluation of information 
received is in progress. 
 

15. Internal Audit continues to reiterate the importance of setting realistic timescales 
for demonstrating recommendations implementation and for ensuring that local 
progress monitoring is undertaken in respect of the resolution of issues identified 
through audits; implementation evidence should be readily available once target 
dates are reached and there should be prompt communication to Internal Audit of 
any issues in this respect. Conclusion of one follow-up has been delayed as 
status updates and evidence were not readily available to Internal Audit.   
 

Corporate & Strategic Implications 
 

16. The overall Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide assurance as to the 
adequacy of the City of London Corporation’s systems of internal control and 
governance.  This programme of activity is aligned with the Corporate Plan, 
Corporate Risk Register and Departmental Top Risks.  The Guildhall School, as 
an institutional department of the Corporation, has a sub-section of the Plan and 
a programme of Internal Audit work that includes audit assignments and regular 
follow-up activity in respect of recommendations implementation.  

 
Conclusion 
 

17. Members are asked to note the findings of completed Internal Audit work, the 
current position of the 2021-22 Audit Plan and the status of open high priority 
recommendations as at the end of October 2021.   
 

18. Follow-up activity is scheduled to be undertaken promptly in line with overall 
target recommendation timescales and revised assurance opinions are informed 
by a review of implementation evidence. Scope exists to strengthen the internal 
management processes for tracking recommendations implementation and 
ensuring that evidence is provided to Internal Audit in line with target dates.  
 

Appendices 

• Appendix 1: 2021-22 Guildhall School Audit Plan Delivery  

• Appendix 2: Recently Finalised 2021-22 Audit Outcome 

• Appendix 3: Live High Priority Recommendations 
 

Cirla Peall 
Audit Manager, Chamberlain’s Department 
Cirla.peall@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 24



Appendix 1 
 

Internal Audit Work 2021-22 
 

Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations Raised 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student 
Housing (The Code) – including non-mandatory elements 
 
The Code sets out what constitutes good practice in the 
management of student accommodation, covering areas 
including health and safety, repairs and maintenance, and 
relationships between managers and student tenants; it includes 
both ‘Mandatory’ and ‘Non-Mandatory’ requirements. This audit 
sought to provide assurance that that the Guildhall School 
complies with both the Mandatory and non-mandatory elements 
of the Code. 

 

 
 

Complete 

 
 

Moderate 

 
 

0 

 
 

7 
 

 
 

5 

 
 

12 

Data Quality - independent verification/validation of data 
submissions as part of a rolling programme of checks.   
 
An annual check to provide assurance of integrity in terms of 
process and systems used to capture and prepare the data for 
submission.  The 2021-22 check will focus on financial returns. 
 

 
 
 

Planning 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 
 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

Medium Term Financial Planning - to provide independent 
assurance on implementation of the Plan and delivery against 
this.   
 
Members of the GSMD Audit & Risk Management Committee 
have requested that this incorporate a look at how progress is 
measured against KPIs, targets and objectives, specifically in 

 
 
 

Not 
Initiated 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

P
age 25



Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations Raised 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

terms of the discussions with the City in respect of investment 
sought by the School, and projects emerging in the second phase 
of the Plan. 

Governance 

Provision of assurance in respect of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal governance arrangements, in-line with 
sector and regulator guidance and requirements. 

 

Not 
Initiated 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS RAISED 0 7 5 12 

 

Project Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 
Outstanding 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Audit Follow-Ups 

Guildhall Young Artists: Follow-Up of 2020-21 Audit – first 
follow-up 
 
Follow-up of the audit finalised in April 2021 and which had a 
moderate assurance opinion. Sufficient evidence was 
received to demonstrate full implementation of six 
recommendations and partial implementation of four 
recommendations, resulting in a substantial assurance 
opinion as at September 2021. A second follow-up exercise 
will be carried out in April 2022, in line with revised target 
implementation dates. 
 

 
 
 

Complete 

 
 
 

Substantial 
 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

3 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

4 

P
age 26



Project Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 
Outstanding 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

GSMD & Barbican Facilities Management & Maintenance: 
Follow-Up of 2020-21 Audit – first follow-up 
 
Follow-up of the audit finalised in March 2021 and which had 
a moderate assurance opinion.  
Status updates and implementation evidence were received 
during the writing of this Update Report and evaluation of this 
information is in progress. Management have indicated that 
there has been some slippage in implementation. 
 

 
 
 

In Progress 
(Delayed) 

 
 
 
- 
 
 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

UUK Follow-Up of 2020-21 Audit – first follow-up 

Follow-up of the audit finalised in August 2021 and which had 
a moderate assurance opinion.  

 

In Progress 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING AT FOLLOW-UP 0 3 1 4 

 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 28



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Executive Summary 

Background and Scope 
This Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of 
Student Housing (the Code) sets out what constitutes good 
practice in the management of student accommodation. The Code 
covers areas including but not limited to health and safety, repairs 
and maintenance, and relationships between managers and 
student tenants; it includes both ‘Mandatory’ and ‘Non-
Mandatory’ requirements.  By complying with the Code, the 
Guildhall School can demonstrate to current and prospective 
students that its Sundial Court accommodation is of a satisfactory 
standard. 
 

Section 8 of the Code requires the Guildhall School’s Internal 
Audit function to provide independent assurance as to the extent 
the School complies with the Code. 
 

The objectives of this review were to: 
▪ provide assurance that that the Guildhall School complies with 

both the mandatory and non-Mandatory elements of the 
Code.  

▪ identify areas of non-compliance with the Code and make 
appropriate recommendations to improve accommodation 
standards; 

▪ follow up recommendations made as part of the previous 
audit, undertaken in 2017. 

 

The audit was undertaken remotely, reviewing electronic records. 

Summary 
The audit review found that there are clear areas for enhancing the 
standard of both accommodation and student life. These relate to 
the following sections of the Code: 

• updating the General Outbreak / Pandemic Response Plan (2.2);  

• undertaking routine maintenance of Fire Alarm Systems (2.7); 

• undertaking routine checks on the presence and condition of 
Signage, Fire Extinguishers, Fire Blankets and Fire Doors (2.8).  

• monitoring the level of lighting in student bedrooms (2.17); 

• inspecting the drainage and sewerage systems (2.21);  

• providing repairs and maintenance Service Level Agreements to 
students (3.2 and 5.5.11);  

• installing ‘non-drinking water’ signs in bathrooms (2.20); 

• addressing outstanding actions from the recent School Security 
Vulnerability Assessment (3.6);  

• promoting the Universities UK Code of Practice within Student 
Induction materials (1.4) and ensuring Students have access to the 
current Flat Handbook (2.12);  

• encouraging environmentally responsible behaviours (4.2); 

• keeping students abreast of progress with rectifying property 
defects and faults (3.3);  

• devising policies in relation to on snow and ice clearance (3.8).  

There are two outstanding recommendations from the previous 
audit, relating to enhancing the content of the Student Handbook.  

  

P
age 29



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Section 2: Management Action Plan 

Recommendation Management Response 

1.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the General Outbreak / 
Pandemic Response Plan is updated 
and subject to regular review and 
update going forward. 

Accept recommendation. 

Building on the existing Covid outbreak plan, the aim is to take the learning and update the 
general plan. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations 

Implementation Date: 31/07/2021 

2.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that routine checks carried out 
on the presence and condition of Fire 
Safety Signage, Fire Extinguishers, Fire 
Blankets together with the condition 
of Fire Doors are recorded. 

Accept recommendation. 

The general information/check list that checks have occurred and comply with the inspection 
standards will need to be improved and appropriate training provided. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021 

3.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the level of lighting in 
Student Bedrooms is subject to 
regular monitoring to ensure it is of a 
satisfactory standard.  

Accept recommendation and will incorporate into the routine flat inspections. 

Responsible Officer: Facilities Manager Implementation Date: 06/09/2021  

 

P
age 30



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Recommendation Management Response 

4.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
develop a programme for inspecting 
the drainage and sewerage systems. 

 

Accept recommendation 
HoD of Engineering & Projects will put a planned preventative maintenance programme in 
place.  This will also go on to the improved regular visual check list. 

Responsible Officer: Head of Engineering & 
Projects 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021 

5.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that Service Level Agreements 
for repairs and maintenance are 
issued to students, and that these 
state target response times for 
undertaking works required. 

Accept recommendation. 
This work will be undertaken and be ready for issue at the start of the new term. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & 
Operations/Head of 
Engineering & Projects 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021  

6.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that ‘non-drinking water’ signs 
are installed above cold taps in 
bathrooms at the earliest 
opportunity. 

Accept recommendation. 
Engineering team to verify all water sources to allow for appropriate signage to be installed. 

Responsible Officer: Facilities 
Managers/Engineering 
Operations Manager 

Implementation Date: 25/06/2021  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 31



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Recommendation Management Response 

7.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the outstanding security 
vulnerabilities are addressed at the 
earliest opportunity. 

 

Accept recommendation. 
Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations will work with the newly appointed 
Protection Operations Manager to develop action plan to respond to recommendation in the 
vulnerabilities assessment. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience/Protection 
Operations Manager 
(Security Contract 
Providers ISS) 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021  

8.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the Universities UK Code 
of Practice is promoted within the 
School’s Induction materials. 

 

Accept recommendation. 
This will be added to all materials issued to students. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience/Student Life 
Officer 

Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

9.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
improve arrangements for managing 
version control, to ensure that the 
current version of the Flat Handbook 
is circulated to students. 

Accept recommendation. 
Although there are version controls, accept that some flats did not have the most recent 
handbook and due diligence had not been implemented. 

Responsible Officer: Facilities Manager Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

 

P
age 32



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

 

Recommendation Management Response 

10.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the Student Handbook 
includes a statement outlining 
expectations that Students will 
minimise energy and water 
consumption.  

Accept recommendation. 
Working with the stakeholders including student union, promote more widely in handbook 
and other outlets environmental and sustainability information regards resource 
consumption. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations. 

Implementation Date: 15/07/2021  

11. The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that appropriate mechanisms 
are in place for keeping students 
abreast of progress in resolving 
property defects and faults. 

Accept recommendation.  

The helpdesk function for reporting faults is under review and the Buildings & Operations team 
will be leading on implementing an uprated system. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations. 

Implementation Date: 31/03/2022  

12. The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that an appropriate policy in 
relation to Snow and Ice clearance, is 
devised at the earliest opportunity. 

Accept recommendation. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021 

 
 

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 34



Appendix 3 

Schedule of GSMD Live High Priority Recommendations as at end of October 2021  
 

Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

Student Affairs – February 2019 

1.  Student Affairs (MK 2808) - Review of service provision to provide 
ongoing assurance that delivery is effective and represents value 
for money. 

Student Affairs management should ensure that: 

• Periodic service reviews are undertaken, considering alternative 
delivery models where appropriate;  

• Such reviews should be documented to demonstrate the process 
followed and the outcome, including relevant cost implications to 
facilitate approval by an appropriate party;  

• The impact of any delivery model changes implemented should be 
monitored and reported to an appropriate forum such as the 
Operations Board. 

Amber 30/09/19 31/10/21 Internal Audit Comment 
A revised target timescale of 
October 2021 was proposed 
by the Secretary & Dean of 
Students at the April 2021 
meeting of the School’s Audit 
& Risk Management 
Committee; the timing reflects 
when the Student Affairs 
Annual Report for 2020-21 is 
due to be presented.  

Medium Term Financial Plan – March 2021 

2. Medium Term Financial Plan (MK 3647): Timetable and 
Responsibilities for Creation, Review and Approval 
 

A timetable for the creation, review and sign off of the School's MTFP, 
including clear definition of responsibilities should be drawn up, 
approved and disseminated to key stakeholders. 
 
 

Amber 30/06/21 30/09/21 Internal Audit Comment 
A management status update 
has been requested as the 
revised target timescale has 
been reached 

P
age 35



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

Guildhall Young Artists – April 2021 

3. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3733): Peterborough CYM Information 
Flow 

GYA Management should review the arrangements for information 
flow from the Peterborough CYM Board to facilitate effective oversight 
and to help ensure that the School’s interests are adequately 
protected.  

Amber 28/05/21 31/03/22 Internal Audit Comment: 
These recommendations 
were assessed as partially 
implemented at formal follow-
up.  
 
Revised target dates have 
been provided for 
demonstration of full 
implementation and a second 
follow-up will be carried out in 
April 2022. 

4. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3780): Accounts Receivable Controls 

GYA accounts receivable processes should incorporate an adequate 
separate of duties to facilitate independent checking of invoices raised 
against amounts due, transparent debt recovery arrangements, and 
regular reconciliation of amounts received, income banked and 
general ledger postings. 

Amber 16/07/21 31/12/21 

5. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3781): Regular Financial Reporting 

Budget monitoring reports should be circulated to budget holders on a 
regular, monthly basis, and finance meetings convened at regular 
intervals across the GYA programme. 

Amber 16/07/21 31/12/21 

Barbican & GSMD – Facilities Management & Maintenance – March 2021 

6. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management (MK3649): 
Reporting to the Executive Board 

The Principal should ensure that the Guildhall School's Management 
Information Dashboard is presented to Members of the School's 
Executive Board, on a quarterly basis 

 

Amber 30/06/21 Internal Audit Comment: 
 
Formal follow-up is underway.  
 
At the time of writing, Management have 
provided status updates which reflect that 
there has been some slippage.  

P
age 36



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

7. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3650) 

The Head of Engineering Projects should determine appropriate 
productivity targets and wider performance measures for the 
Engineering Team and implement a framework for monitoring 
performance accordingly, in order to drive the necessary 
improvements in performance. 

Amber 30/09/21 A combination of recommendations 
implemented, recommendations 
progressed but not fully implemented and 
recommendations not implemented has 
been reported. Evaluation of this 
information, implementation evidence and 
proposed revised target dates for 
demonstration of full implementation is in 
progress.  

8. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3652) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that the 
accuracy and completeness of Programmed Maintenance tasks within 
the Micad and Agility systems are periodically verified. 

Amber 31/05/21 

9. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3653) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that Skanska's 
performance in completing Programmed Maintenance tasks is 
regularly monitored, to ensure Skanska are delivering in accordance 
with contractual requirements. 

Amber 15/07/21 

10. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK3656) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement a framework 
for monitoring the quality of Programmed Maintenance, completed by 
both Skanska and the Engineering Team. 

Amber 15/07/21 

11. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3657) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that the 
completeness of the Asbestos Register is subject to regular 
verification. 
 

Amber 31/07/21 

P
age 37



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

12. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3660) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that all water 
management tasks are set out within the Programmed Maintenance 
Schedules. 

Amber 31/05/21 

13. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3661) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement an 
appropriate action plan to ensure that all outstanding all Gas Safety, 
Electrical Safety and Water Management tasks are completed. 

Amber 15/07/21 

14. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3662) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that Skanska's 
performance in completing reactive maintenance tasks on a timely 
basis is regularly monitored to ensure conformance to contractual 
requirements. 

Amber 15/07/21 

15. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3664) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement a framework 
for monitoring the quality of Reactive Maintenance, completed by both 
Skanska and the Engineering Team. 

Amber 15/07/21 

16. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3665) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that the skills 
analysis exercise is completed in an appropriate timeframe. 

Amber 30/09/21 

17. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3666) 
The Head of Engineering and projects should enhance monitoring 
arrangements to ensure that quoted works are subject to approval 
prior to works being initiated. 

Amber 31/05/21 

P
age 38



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

18. Facilities Management & Maintenance (MK 3667) 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement 
arrangements for verifying the accuracy of reactive maintenance tasks 
recorded as 'completed' in Micad. 

Amber 31/05/21 

UUK Code of Practice – August 2021 

19. UUK Code of Practice (MK 3848) 

The Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the General Outbreak / Pandemic Response Plan is 
updated and subject to regular review and update going forward. 

Amber 31/07/21 Internal Audit Comment: 
Formal follow-up is underway.  
 

20. UUK Code of Practice (MK 3849) 

The Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations should 
ensure that routine checks carried out on the presence and condition 
of Fire Safety Signage, Fire Extinguishers, Fire Blankets together with 
the condition of Fire Doors are recorded. 

Amber 06/09/21 

21. UUK Code of Practice (MK 3850) 

The Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the level of lighting in Student Bedrooms is subject to 
regular monitoring to ensure it is of a satisfactory standard. 

Amber 06/09/21 

22. UUK Code of Practice (MK 3851) 

The Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations should 
develop a programme for inspecting the drainage and sewerage 
systems. 
 

Amber 06/09/21 

P
age 39



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Status & Comments  

23. UUK Code of Practice (MK 3852) 

The Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations should 
ensure that Service Level Agreements for repairs and maintenance 
are issued to students, and that these state target response times for 
undertaking works required. 

Amber 06/09/21 

24. UUK Code of Practice (MK 3853) 

The Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations should 
ensure that ‘non-drinking water’ signs are installed above cold taps in 
bathrooms at the earliest opportunity. 

Amber 25/06/21  

25. UUK Code of Practice (MK 3854) 

The Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the outstanding security vulnerabilities are addressed at 
the earliest opportunity. 

Amber 05/09/21  

 

P
age 40



Document is Restricted

Page 41

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a MInutes of the Meeting held on 15th July 2021
	3b Minutes of the Special Meeting held on 7th September 2021
	4 Work Plan
	5 Internal Audit Update Report
	Appendix 1 Internal Audit Work 2021-22_Oct 2021
	Appendix 2 2021_22 Finalised Audit Outcome Oct 21
	Appendix 3 GSMD Live High Priority Recommendations - Nov 2021

	9 Non-Public Minutes
	11 Overview of School statutory returns - 2020/21 cycle
	Overview of returns for 202021 cycle

	12 Ongoing conditions of registration with the Office for Students (OfS)
	Ongoing conditions of registration with OfS

	13 Guildhall School of Music & Drama Risk Register
	Appendix 1 Detailed departmental risk register
	Appendix 2 Detailed Service Risk Register
	Appendix 3 - Draft risk management protocol
	Appendix 4 - Informal Risk Challenge submission


